
Tokyo

Embassy of the Republic of Iraq

Commercial Attache

Ref:
Date:
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~ 12/2016
((URGENT))

To: JCCMElMr.Kaoru Nakajima, Deputy Managing Director,
Chief Representative, Iraq Desk of Japan.

JETROI Ms.Asami Himeno, Strategic Coordination Office(Middle East & Africa).

SUB: ADVERTISEMENT OF TENDER NO. (MOE-HQ-3/2016)

The Embassy of the Republic of Iraq, Commercial Attache would like to present its
compliment to your esteemed Organization, and for enhancing the commercial & economic
relations between our two countries.

We enclosed here with the advertisement form of the Ministry of Electricity (MOE) to
invite all the specialized Japanese companies to participate in above mentioned tender
according to the specifications attached.

The Closing Date will be on 15/2/2016

Your prompt positive response will remain.

Best Regards,

Kawthar Farhan Rasheed
Assistant Commercial Attache

~ 12/2016
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MINISTRY OF ELECTRICITY 

ANNOUNCEMENT  NO. (MOE-HQ-3/2016) 

 PRIVATE SECTOR INVOLVEMENT IN THE DISTRIBUTION SECTOR 

The Ministry of Electricity of the Republic of Iraq (the "MOE") hereby announces that, as 

part of the plan of introducing the private sector into the distribution section of the 

electricity sector in Iraq, it is seeking interested parties to maintain and operate the 

distribution sector in various governorates throughout Iraq, as well as in Baghdad.  In 

connection therewith, the MOE hereby announces that it has released a Request for 

Information (the "RFI") to be completed by interested parties.   

Interested parties should note the following: 

1 They can pick up the RFI from the Ministry of Electricity's website (www.moelc.gov.iq) or physically at the 

Ministry at the following address: Investment and Contracts Office (Tender Department), Ministry of 

Electricity Headquarters, Al-Niqabat Street, Al-Mansour District, Baghdad, Iraq.  The RFI will be available 

starting on Sunday 31 January 2016. 

2 The RFI contains a series of questions to be completed by interested parties that will assist the MOE in 

determining whether such interested parties should be prequalified for the bidding stage.  Interested 

parties should note that they can ask specific information (technical or otherwise) from the MOE by 

writing to the MOE, as laid out in the RFI. 

3 The services to be performed by the winning bidders would include the maintenance and operation of 

the existing distribution networks in many governorates in Iraq, as well as the collection of tariffs from 

the consumers.  The following governorates will be included (as well as Baghdad): Basrah, Maysan, 

DhiQar, Al-Muthana, Al-Najaf, Karbala, Al-Qadisiyah, Wasit, Babil, Kirkuk, Salahuddin and Diyala.  Bidders 

should note that the areas that they will be asked to provide services to will either be the whole 

governorate or certain administrative units within the governorates (referred to as qadha'a).  Interested 

parties should note that they will be required to introduce smart meters in the consumer locations. 

4 Answers to the RFI would be due by 15 February 2016. 

Interested parties should note that the MOE will look favourably at the time factor for the 

implementation of the contracts, once awarded. 

http://www.moelc.gov.iq/
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1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Ministry of Electricity of the Republic of Iraq (the "MOE"), in its efforts to increase private sector 

involvement in the electricity sector generally, and following the introduction of a pilot program at Al-

Zayouna in Baghdad, hereby requests information from interested parties to operate, rehabilitate and 

maintain the distribution grid, supply smart meters to each of the consumer points and organize the 

collection of tariffs from customers (collectively, the "Services") throughout Iraq (in accordance with this 

request for Information).  Interested parties should note that, subject to the relevant contracts, the winning 

bidders will have exclusive rights to provide the Services in the relevant Covered Area (as defined below in 

paragraph 1.2).  The MOE proposes that the winning bidder will be responsible for collecting, on behalf of 

the MOE, the tariffs to be paid by the consumers, and then deducting its fees for the Services it will be 

providing. 

1.2 The MOE intends the Services to be provided in phases in a number of areas throughout Iraq (each, a 

"Covered Area").  Bidders would eventually be asked to bid for a minimum of one Covered Area.  The MOE's 

current plans are that such Covered Area should consist of at least any of the following: 

1.2.1 In the following governorates, a Covered Area would consist of either a whole governorate or an 

administrative unit (known as Qadha'a) of a governorate.  These governorates are: Basrah, 

Maysan, Dhi Qar, Al-Muthana, Al-Najaf, Karbala, Al-Qadisiyah, Wasit, Babil, Kirkuk, Salahuddin 

and Diyala.   

1.2.2 With respect to Baghdad, a Covered Area would consist of either a Qadha'a administrative unite or 

a population catchment centre containing at least 100,000 consumers; and 

1.2.3 Interested parties should note that, at this stage and due to the security situation, the 

governorates of Al-Anbar and Nineveh will not be included. 

1.2.4 For more details on each Covered Area, interested parties should review Appendix 1, which 

provides details on the size of each governorate and the number of consumers in each Covered 

Area (as well as the type of consumers).   

1.3 The proposed term of the Project is five years.   

1.4 Interested parties should note that the ownership of the distribution assets and other items necessary for 

the operation of the distribution services will remain with the MOE. 

1.5 Interested parties should note that the tariffs for the provision of electricity to the consumers would be set 

by the MOE.  For more details on the tariffs, interested parties should review Appendix 2. 

1.6 Interested parties should note that the MOE is currently undergoing an aggressive plan to expand electricity 

production and distribution.  However, it should be noted that currently there are electricity shortages in 

Iraq.  Interested parties should review Appendix 3 for details on the current electricity supply in the various 

areas.    

1.7 The distribution grid is currently undergoing rehabilitation.  Interested parties should note that, as part of 

the Services that they are to provide, they will be required to supply smart meters to each of the 

consumers.  The standard specifications of the smart meters, the software standards, and the 

communications methods and standards will be provided by the MOE in the relevant RFP. 
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1.8 The current billing cycle is every two months (in arrears/postpaid).  However, interested parties should note 

that the MOE has decided to make the billing cycle on the basis of one month.  The MOE would also 

consider prepaid mechanisms to be introduced. 

1.9 Interested parties should note that the roll-out plan will be in various phases.  Interested parties should 

note that they can indicate interest in more than one Covered Area, and that the MOE may grant successful 

bidders more than one Covered Area. 

 

2 RFI REQUIREMENTS PROCESS  

2.1 Interested parties should note that they will be required to provide information on themselves for purposes 

of a preliminary evaluation by the MOE.  If interested parties have any immediate questions relating to this 

Request for Information, they should send an email with the relevant questions to the following three email 

addresses (copying all three):  

Dist_office@yahoo.com 

Nafa.a.ali@moelc.gov.iq 

32_contracts@moelc.gov.iq 

2.2 Once the RFI responses have been evaluated by the MOE, qualified parties will be invited to bid for the 

Services to be provided in a particular Covered Area either (i) in the event of a large number of potential 

bidders for a particular Covered Area, through a formal RFP issued pursuant to Iraqi procurement 

regulations (Regulation number 2 of 2014) or (ii) in the event of a limited number of bidders for a particular 

Covered Area, a direct invitation (also pursuant to the requirements Regulation number 2 on 2014). 

2.3 Interested parties should (i) complete the questionnaire included in Paragraph 3 below and (ii) submit such 

responses to the questionnaire, together with any additional information and the form included in Appendix 

4 (which will include a confidentiality undertaking) in either by email to the two addresses included in 

Paragraph 2.5 below or physically to the address included in Paragraph 3.2 below.  

2.4  

The following is the Schedule for this RFI: 

31 January 2016 Request for Information Made Available to 

Interested Parties 

1 February 2016 – 15 

February 2016 

(1) Interested parties to submit any questions 

that they have on the process, this RFI or in 

connection with completing the questionnaire to 

the MOE in accordance with paragraph 2.1 above.  

These should include technical questions. 

(2)  The MOE will provide immediate responses to 

the interested parties. 

15 February 2016 Deadline for Receiving Response to this RFI (ie. 

completing the questionnaire) 

22 February 2016 RFI responses to be evaluated and short list 

mailto:Dist_office@yahoo.com
mailto:Nafa.a.ali@moelc.gov.iq
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31 January 2016 Request for Information Made Available to 

Interested Parties 

completed by the MOE 

22 February 2016 Launch Date of the first RFP or invitation for a 

particular Covered Area 

 

2.5 All questions related to this RFI shall be submitted by email and directed to the following two addresses: 

2.5.1 32_contracts@moelc.gov.iq – Attention: Mr. Ra’ad Qassem, Director General 

2.5.2 Nafa.a.ali@moelc.gov.iq 

2.5.3 Dist_office@yahoo.com 

2.6 RFI Terms and Conditions: 

2.6.1 Liabilities of the MOE:  This RFI is only a request for information relating to the experience of 

interested parties and no contractual obligation on behalf of the MOE whatsoever shall arise from 

the RFI process. This RFI does not commit the MOE to pay any cost incurred in the preparation or 

submission of any response to the RFI.   

2.6.2 Confidentiality: This RFI is both confidential and proprietary to the MOE, and the MOE reserves the 

right to recall the RFI in its entirety or in part. Interested parties cannot and hereby agree that 

they will not duplicate, distribute or otherwise disseminate or make available this document or the 

information contained in it without the express written consent of the MOE.  Interested parties 

shall not include or reference this RFI in any publicity without the prior written approval of the 

MOE, which, if granted, shall be granted by the Director General of the Investments and Contracts 

Office of the MOE.  Interested parties must accept all of the foregoing terms and condition s 

without exception. All responses to the RFI will become the property of the MOE and will not be 

returned. 

3 RESPONSE FORMAT 

3.1 All responses to this RFI should come in the format laid out in Section 3.3 of this RFI below.   

3.2 Responses to this RFI should be submitted electronically to the addresses included in Section 2.5 of this RFI 

by not later than noon (Baghdad time) on 15 February 2016.  If an interested party wishes to submit the 

response physically, which is preferred but not compulsory, ten physical copies should also be delivered to 

the following address by the same deadline: The Ministry of Electricity, Investments and Contracts Office, 

Tenders Department, Ministry of Electricity Headquarters, Al-Niqabat Street, Al-Mansour, Baghdad, Iraq. 

3.3 You should provide the answers in the relevant areas of the table below.  Should you require more space, 

please add the information in the form of attachments. 

 Question Response 

1 Name of Company  

2 Country of incorporation of 

Company 

 

3 Address of Company  

4 Name, physical address and  

mailto:32_contracts@moelc.gov.iq
mailto:Nafa.a.ali@moelc.gov.iq
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email address of person 

responsible for the 

information in this RFI 

5 Telephone Number of 

responsible person 

 

6 Date of incorporation of 

Company 

 

7 Is Company part of a group of 

companies?  If yes, please 

provide details on other 

members of the Group. 

 

8 What countries does the 

Company have affiliates or 

subsidiaries?  Addresses of 

such affiliates and subsidiaries 

 

9 Number of employees of 

company (on a consolidated 

and unconsolidated basis) 

- Total 

- Development 

- Implementation 

- Manufacturing 

- Administration and sales 

 

10 Total Revenue 

- Last financial year 

- Previous two financial years 

 

Total profit/loss 

- Last financial year 

- Previous two financial years 

 

Total Assets 

- Last financial year 

- Previous two financial years 

 

Total capital 

- Last financial year 

- Previous two financial years 

 

Retained earnings 

- Last financial year 

- Previous two financial years 

 

In addition, please provide 

the financial statements of 

the Company (and or the 

Group) for the last three 

financial years. 

 

11 Company’s or Group’s  
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experience in electricity 

distribution projects.  Please 

provide details of such 

projects, including location, 

distribution capacity and term 

of contracts. 

12 Experience in the Middle East 

generally and with electricity 

distribution in the Middle East 

specifically 

 

13 Name and size of last five 

electricity distribution projects 

that the Company has been 

involved in.  Please include 

dates of these projects with a 

brief description of these. 

 

14 Describe any third party 

relationships and alliances 

 

15 Does the Company or Group 

have experience in Iraq? 

Please provide types of 

experience the Company or 

Group has in Iraq.  Please 

provide details, rather than 

one line answers.   

 

16 Please provide details of any 

outstanding material legal 

action against your company 

or any directors.  Please 

include details of material 

legal action against principal 

subsidiaries.  Please note that 

failure to disclose this 

information relating to your 

company and those of 

affiliates or subsidiaries could 

lead to disqualification 

 

17 Should your company be 

successful, please provide 

information on your 

implementation methodology.  

In particular, please provide 

details of the type of due 

diligence you would need to 

complete your due diligence 

review of the Covered Area, 

as well as the anticipated time 

frame you would need to 

complete this due diligence.  
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In addition, please provide 

details on the transition 

process that you would 

anticipate requiring.  Please 

note that the response to this 

question would be critical in 

the evaluation process. 

18 Describe any licensing rights 

that the Company or Group 

has. 

 

19 Training 

- Does your company offer 

formal training exercises in 

the management and 

operation of distribution 

networks? 

- If yes, what type of training 

programs does your company 

offer? 

- What is the duration of the 

training programs? 

 

20 Please describe your general 

proposals relating to the 

maintenance of the existing 

distribution networks, in 

particular your proposed 

maintenance program. 

 

21 What are your anticipated 

financing needs for the 

project (if you are 

successful)? Please provide 

general details of your 

financing plan, as well as your 

sources of financing.  Please 

provide detailed proposals on 

the level of debt and the 

types of equity to be raised.  

One matter to note is that, as 

stated above, the winning 

bidder will be required to 

install smart meters in the 

relevant Covered Area. 

 

22 Please provide examples of 

your group’s experience in 

raising debt, as well as with 

project finance.  Please 

provide details and letters of 

support from your financing 

parties and financial advisors, 
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if any. 

23 Please indicate which Covered 

Area or more that you are 

interested in?  Please provide 

the reasons for this. 

 

24 What type of services and 

support do you anticipate 

needing from the MOE?  What 

type of services do you 

anticipate needing from the 

Iraqi government generally?   

 

25 Are there other specific 

market or technology barriers 

that this announcement 

should have applicants 

address? 

 

26 The MOE anticipates that you 

will need to visit the Covered 

Area(s) you are interested in 

and inspect the existing 

transmission and distribution 

grid at the location.  Please 

confirm this and advise the 

proposed number of people 

and number of days needed 

to do so.   

 

27 How much time do you 

anticipate needing to 

complete the RFP, if you are 

prequalified? 

 

28 How do you anticipate 

providing the services?  What 

are your proposals on the 

tariff collection mechanisms 

and how do you anticipate the 

collection of tariffs from the 

consumers to take place?   

 

29 Would you believe that a 

prepayment mechanism 

(where consumers prepay for 

the electricity) would work 

better for purposes of 

carrying out your services?  If 

yes, what would your 

proposal be on integrating the 

existing process into the 

prepayment mechanism? 

 

30 Would you have any 

preferences with respect to 
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starting your services first 

with commercial enterprises 

who are consumers in the 

Covered Area, or can you 

provide services to the whole 

consumer base in the Covered 

Area? 

31 What equipment and material 

would you generally intend to 

include as part of the 

provision of your services? 

Would there be any 

equipment and material that 

will be fixed? 

 

32 Based on your experience, 

what regulatory requirements 

would you prefer to have? 

 

33 On a no commitment basis, 

what would you estimate the 

time it would take you to 

commence operation and 

maintenance on the sites 

after signing the relevant 

contracts? 

 

34 What would your preferred 

term of contract be?  Please 

advise what the impact on the 

fees you would charge be for 

a longer term.  Currently, the 

MOE is considering a term of 

five years. 

 

35 What type of insurances 

would you consider obtaining 

if you are chosen as the 

successful bidder?  Please 

note that, as part of the 

Services, you would be 

required to maintain some of 

the distribution networks 

which will continue to belong 

to the MOE. 

 

36 What computer software 

programs would you be 

installing to operate your 

services?  What are the 

interface protocols that you 

would consider are necessary 

for the interface with the 

MOE’s distribution and control 
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systems?  What information 

would you need for the 

interface? 

37 What billing systems would 

you include in the provision of 

your services? 

 

38 Please note that the current 

billing cycle is every two 

months.  Please advise 

whether, if successful, you 

would keep such billing cycle.  

If not, please advise your 

proposed billing cycle and the 

advantages of the 

introduction of your billing 

cycle. 

 

39 Should there be any 

irregularities in the delivery of 

electricity to consumers, 

please advise your proposals 

for introducing methodologies 

to combat such irregularities 

(such as theft, improper 

meter reading etc.).   

 

40 When the RFP or direct 

invitation are announced and 

offers submitted, the MOE 

intends to base its decision on 

a mix of factors, both 

commercial and technical, 

including (i) the financing 

structure and financial plan of 

the bidder, (ii) the fees that 

the Project Company would 

charge the MOE for the 

services to be provided, (iii) 

the bidder’s experience, and 

(iv) the operational plans for 

the services.  Do you believe 

that the MOE should add to 

the evaluation criteria? Are 

there other criteria that 

should be considered, such as 

impact on the environment? 

 

41 On a no commitment basis, 

what is your experience of the 

range of fees (per KWh) that 

you would expect to charge 

for the services? 
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42 What specific information 

would you need to be 

included in the RFP?  Please 

be specific in your requests. 

 

 

4 PROJECT REFERENCES 

4.1 Please provide details of at least three projects that the Company has completed.  Please provide 

references. 

4.2 If the Company has been involved in an electricity distribution project previously, please provide details of 

these projects that the company has been involved in. 
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Appendix 1 

List of Covered Areas, with information on consumers in each 
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Appendix 2 

Details on the Tariffs to be charged to consumers 
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Appendix 3 

Electricity Supply in the relevant Covered Area.   
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NOTICE OF RESPONSE 

 

[INTERESTED PARTY LETTERHEAD] 

 

 

Mr.Ra'ad Qassem Mohammed 

Director General 

Investments and Contracts Office 

Ministry of Electricity of the Republic  

 of Iraq 

Al-Niqabat Street 

Al-Mansour District 

Baghdad, Iraq 

 

[INSERT DATE] 

 

Dear Sir: 

 

On behalf of [INSERT NAME OF INTERESTED PARTY COMPANY], I hereby submit this response to the Request for Information 

to operate and maintain the distribution network (the "RFI").    

In consideration of the Ministry of Electricity (the "MOE") providing us with Confidential Information (as defined below), we 

hereby undertake to the MOE as follows: 

 

1 To keep the Confidential Information secret and confidential and, without prejudice to the generality of the 

foregoing; 

2 Not to use the Confidential Information, whether commercial or non-commercial, except for the purpose of 

responding to the RFI; 

3 Not to disclose the Confidential Information to any third party and to use all reasonable efforts to prevent any such 

disclosure; 

4 Make only such limited number of copies of the Confidential Information as are necessary and required for the 

purpose of responding to the RFI, and provide those copies only to Authorised Persons (as defined below). 

 



 

 

 Page 20 

  

Our obligations above are qualified by the fact that we may disclose the Confidential Information provided by you to our 

directors, officers, employees, lenders, suppliers, contractors and professional advisors to the extent that disclosure is 

necessary and required for the purpose of completing the response to the RFI. 

 

For purposes of this letter, the following terms are defined as follows: 

 "Authorised Persons" shall mean our directors, officers, employees, lenders, suppliers, contractors and professional 

advisors 

 "Confidential Information" shall mean any information of any nature whatsoever disclosed (whether in writing, 

verbally or by any other means and whether directly or indirectly) by the MOE or by a third party on behalf of the 

MOE Party to us. 

 

We hereby agree that the obligations under this letter shall be governed by the provisions of Iraqi law and that we hereby 

submit solely for the purposes of this letter to the jurisdiction of the courts of Iraq. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

[INSERT NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNATORY] 

 




